
 1 

 

 
 

PROPOSED AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE COUNCIL 

MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2024 - 7:00 P.M. 
Page Memorial Building 

Village Council Chambers 
839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
III. Roll Call of Council Members 

 
IV. Approval of Agenda 

 
V. Public Comment: 

Under the Open Meetings Act, any citizen may come forward at this time and make comment on items 
that appear on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to three minutes per person.  Anyone who 
would like to speak shall state his/her name and address for the record.  Remarks should be confined 
to the question at hand and addressed to the chair in a courteous tone.  No person shall have the right 
to speak more than once on any particular subject until all other persons wishing to be heard on that 
subject have had the opportunity to speak. 

 
VI. Minutes:  To approve the meeting minutes from the following Village Council meetings: 

a) Minutes from the regular Village Council meeting of July 15, 2024 
 

VII. Expenditures: 
a) Approve bills equal to or less than $3,000.00 each from 7/1/2024 to 7/31/2024. 
b) Approve bills in excess of $3,000.00 each, including:  

i. CivicPlus – Annual Web Maintenance – $4,390.00 (Paid) 
ii. Home Works Tri-County Electric Cooperative – Electricity – $4,043.12 (Paid) 

iii. SLC Meter, LLC – Water Meters and Endpoints – $4,747.29 (Paid) 
iv. Tip Top Customs LLC – Page Memorial Building Renovations Deposit – $52,977.20 (Paid) 

 
VIII. Consent Agenda 

The following consent agenda will normally be adopted without discussion; however, at the request of 
any council member, any item may be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. 
 
Reports and Minutes:  To accept and file the following: 
a) Draft Minutes from the Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority special meeting of 

July 25, 2024 
b) Minutes from the Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission regular meeting of July 8, 2024 
c) Minutes from the Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission special meeting of July 25, 2024 
d) Draft Minutes from the Lake Odessa Zoning Board of Appeals hearing of July 25, 2024 
e) Accept resignation by Ben DeJong from the Downtown Development Authority 
f) Accept resignation by Raymond Dykhouse from the Zoning Board of Appeals 

 



2 

IX. Departmental Reports:
a) Village Manager
b) Police Department
c) Department of Public Works
d) Finance
e) Zoning

X. Presentations:
a) FY 2023-24 Audit Report Discussion

XI. Unfinished Business:
a) Proposed Resolution 2024-44:  Approving Amendment to Right-Of-Way Café Encroachment 

Agreement

XII. New Business:
a) Proposed Resolution 2024-47: Accepting Financial Statements for the Year Ended February 

29, 2024

XIII. Miscellaneous Correspondence:
a) Letter from Terri Catt

XIV. Trustee Comments

XV. Public Comment (See Above)

XVI. Adjournment



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Minutes 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
7/15/2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

1  **DRAFT** 
 
 

 

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

JULY 15, 2024 
PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING 

839 FOURTH AVENUE 
LAKE ODESSA, MICHIGAN 48849 

 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm by Village President Karen Banks. 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
Council present: President Karen Banks, Trustee Mike Brighton, Trustee Terri Cappon, Trustee Jennifer 
Hickey, Trustee Carrie Johnson, Trustee Martha Yoder, Trustee Rob Young 
 
Council absent:  None 
 
Staff present:  Clerk/Treasurer Kathy Forman 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion by Young, supported by Brighton, to approve the agenda.  All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Anthony Fraccarolli – Spoke about parking spaces on Second Avenue. 
2. Bill Rogers – Spoke about his business and the special use granted for the sidewalk and parking 

spaces on Second Avenue. 
3. Jacob VanBoxel – Talked about the hiring process he went through. 
4. Pat Fales – Expressed opinion about the leadership they have witnessed. 
5. Terri Catt – Spoke about several items she is concerned with in the village. 
6. Pam Swiler – Talked about the need for a space in the village where banners about community 

events can be displayed. 
7. Jeff Meyers – Spoke about parking spaces on Second Avenue 
8. Ryan Wilson, ICEA Executive Director – Presented a brief overview about the ICEA. 
9. Sandy Guthrie – Talked about the parking problem downtown.   
10. Alli Smith – Submitted a letter about the parking spaces on Second Avenue that was read aloud. 

 
MINUTES 

Motion by Johnson, supported by Cappon, to approve the minutes from the following meetings: 
a) Minutes from the regular Village Council meeting of June 17, 2024 
b) Minutes from the special Village Council meeting of July 1, 2024 

 
All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 

 
BILLS 

Motion by Brighton, supported by Yoder, to approve expenditures equal to or less than $3,000.00 for the 
period 6/1/2024 through 6/30/2024. All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 

 
Motion by Cappon, supported by Brighton to approve bills in excess of $3,000 as submitted.  
All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Yoder, supported by Hickey, to accept the following items and place them on file: 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
7/15/2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

2  **DRAFT** 
 
 

 

a) Draft Minutes from the Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority meeting of July 9, 2024 
b) Minutes from the Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission meeting of June 11, 2024 
c) Minutes from the Lakewood Recreational Authority meeting of April 8, 2024 
d) Draft Minutes from the Lakewood Recreational Authority meeting of July 8, 2024 

 
All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 

 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

Village Manager: Report submitted. 
Department of Public Works:  Report submitted. 
Finance: Report Submitted. 
Zoning:  Report submitted.  

 
PRESENTATIONS 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
a) Proposed Resolution 2024-43: Approving the Annual Payment to the Ionia County Economic 

Alliance  
 

Motion by Johnson, supported by Cappon, to adopt proposed Resolution 2024-43.  Banks called for 
a roll call vote.  Yes: Johnson, Cappon, Brighton, Hickey, Yoder, Young, Banks; No: None; Absent: 
None; Abstain: None.  Resolution adopted 7-0. 
 

b) Proposed Resolution 2024-44: Approving Amendment to Right-Of-Way Café Encroachment 
Agreement 
 
Motion by Johnson, supported by Cappon to adopt proposed Resolution 2024-44.  
There was a discussion about what council’s options are.   
Johnson withdrew her motion and Cappon withdrew her support for proposed Resolution 2024-44. 
 
Motion by Young, supported by Yoder to Table Resolution 2024-44.  All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 
 

c) Proposed Resolution 2024-45: Approving Designating Voting Delegate to Michigan Municipal 
League Annual Meeting 

 
No council members will be attending this meeting. 
No action was taken. 
 

d) Proposed Resolution 2024-46: Approving the Submission of a Grant Application to the Michigan 
Arts and Culture Council on behalf of the Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission 

 
Motion by Yoder, supported by Cappon, to adopt proposed Resolution 2024-46.  Banks called for a 
roll call vote.  Yes: Yoder, Cappon, Brighton, Hickey, Johnson, Young, Banks; No: None; Absent: 
None; Abstain: None.  Resolution adopted 7-0. 
 

e) Discussion regarding filling the Village Manager vacancy.   
 

Council members discussed waiting until the November elections were complete as there are four 
seats that will be decided at that time.  Letting the new council determine the candidate they would 
like to work with seemed fair.  Council discussed the need to retain Mr. Gregg Guetschow as the 
Interim Village Manager until such time that a new Village Manager is hired. 
 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
7/15/2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

3  **DRAFT** 
 
 

 

Motion by Johnson, supported by Hickey to rescind the offer of employment to Jacob VanBoxel.  
Banks called for a roll call vote.  Yes: Johnson, Hickey, Cappon, Yoder, Banks; No: Brighton, 
Young; Absent: None; Abstain: None.  Resolution adopted 5-2. 
 

f) Discussion regarding dissolution of Lakewood Recreational Authority. 
 

The authority board has expressed questions about the need for the LRA to continue.   
 
Motion by Young, supported by Hickey to start the process to dissolve the Lakewood Recreational 
Authority.  All ayes; motion carried 7-0. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS CORRESPONDENCE 

None 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
Banks – Thanked everyone for coming tonight.  Reminder that Art In The Park is Saturday, August 3rd. 
Brighton – Thanked everyone for coming out. 
Cappon – Thank you, we need to work on items brought forward tonight. 
Hickey – Thank you, opinions and ideas are welcome and appreciated.  To council, we do the best we can. 
Johnson – Welcomed parking ideas and liked the community input. 
Yoder – Thank you, your input is valuable. 
Young – None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Bob Greene – Presented cards about parking to the previous manager and did not receive follow-up 
2. Anthony Fraccarrolli – Spoke of the Art In The Park experience 
3. Pam Swiler – Asked about the location for the future mural in the downtown area. 
4. Pat Fales – May be room for more parking when Ace Hardware moves their propane area. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Young, supported by Hickey, to adjourn the meeting. All ayes: motion carried 7-0. 
Meeting adjourned at 8:21 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kathy S. Forman 
Village Clerk / Treasurer  



Expenditures 



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/3Page: 08/12/2024 01:44 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2024 - 07/31/2024

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARTS 

143.83 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.AMAZON3384ARTS07/11/2024
350.00 IONIA PARTY TENT RENTALSIONIA PAR3385ARTS07/11/2024
108.00 J-AD GRAPHICSJ-AD3386ARTS07/11/2024
615.00 HALL'S SEPTIC SERVICE, LLCJERRY3387ARTS07/11/2024
275.89 KAREN BANKSKAREN3388ARTS07/11/2024
29.95 SUNSHINE ARTISTMISC3389ARTS07/11/2024
296.80 SEAMSEAM3390ARTS07/18/2024
43.65 VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZON3391ARTS07/18/2024
144.00 CHROUCH COMMUNICATIONS, INC.CHROUCH3392ARTS07/25/2024
33.80 DORNBOS SIGN, INC.DORNBROS3393ARTS07/25/2024
68.00 KAREN BANKSKAREN3394ARTS07/25/2024
40.00 LAKEWOOD AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCELACOC3395ARTS07/25/2024
300.00 JOSH DUNIGANMISC3396ARTS07/25/2024
350.00 MICHAEL HULETTMISC3397ARTS07/25/2024
600.00 LUCAS LENHARTMISC3398ARTS07/25/2024
600.00 TIM RODRIGUEZMISC3399ARTS07/25/2024
600.00 MARK ZICKEFOOSEMISC3400ARTS07/25/2024

2,385.00 RIVER CITY REPRODUCTIONSRIVERCITY3401ARTS07/25/2024
310.53 KAREN BANKSKAREN3402ARTS07/25/2024

ARTS TOTALS:

7,294.45 Total of 19 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
7,294.45 Total of 19 Checks:

Bank DDA 6015 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

138.00 ELAN FINANCIAL SERVICESCARDMEMBER1240DDA07/11/2024

DDA TOTALS:

138.00 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
138.00 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank GEN 1447 GENERAL FUND

6,840.00 CIVICPLUS LLCCIVICPLUS42994GEN07/02/2024
100.00 H2O COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC.H2O42995GEN07/02/2024

39,732.90 TIP TOP CUSTOMS LLCTIPTOP42996GEN07/02/2024
152.69 VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZON42997GEN07/02/2024

1,206.99 VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA01442998GEN07/11/2024
381.67 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.AMAZON42999GEN07/11/2024
207.62 ELAN FINANCIAL SERVICESCARDMEMBER43000GEN07/11/2024
84.34 CONRADS QUICK LUBECONRADS43001GEN07/11/2024

2,927.14 CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMERS43002GEN07/11/2024
160.00 GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCGFOA43003GEN07/11/2024
95.49 GRANGERGRANGER43004GEN07/11/2024

1,777.89 GREGG GUIDANCE, LLCGREGG43005GEN07/11/2024
116.00 VC3,  INCIT RIGHT43006GEN07/11/2024
137.50 KDP RETIREMENT PLAN SVCS, INCKDP43007GEN07/11/2024

V336.00 TIMOTHY KENNEDYMISC43008GEN07/11/2024
25.00 BERNADETTE KOHLMISC43009GEN07/11/2024
30.00 MICHIGAN STATE POLICEMSP43010GEN07/11/2024
955.41 WEX BANKWEX43011GEN07/11/2024
11.18 LAKE ODESSA ACE HARDWAREACE43012GEN07/18/2024
197.19 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.AMAZON43013GEN07/18/2024

2,520.79 BLUE CARE NETWORKBCN43014GEN07/18/2024
45.64 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGANBLUE CROSS43015GEN07/18/2024
237.96 CALEDONIA FARMERS ELEVATORCALEDONIA43016GEN07/18/2024
740.66 CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMERS43017GEN07/18/2024
273.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLCDICKINSON43018GEN07/18/2024
476.94 MILLER JOHNSONMILLER43019GEN07/18/2024
399.00 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL TREASURERS ASSOCMMTA43020GEN07/18/2024
530.00 QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC.QUADIENT43021GEN07/18/2024
519.28 SBISSBAM PLAN43022GEN07/18/2024
290.35 VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZON43023GEN07/18/2024
5.00 WOW!  BUSINESSWOW43024GEN07/18/2024

2,000.00 IONIA COUNTY ECONOMIC ALLIANCEICEA43025GEN07/23/2024
336.00 TIMOTHY KENNEDYMISC43026GEN07/23/2024

1,440.00 HASKINS DIRT CONCEPTSMISC43027GEN07/23/2024
116.25 WOW!  BUSINESSWOW43028GEN07/23/2024
156.30 WOW!  BUSINESSWOW43029GEN07/23/2024
110.02 FREEMAN, AARON  DDSMISC43030GEN07/26/2024



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 2/3Page: 08/12/2024 01:44 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2024 - 07/31/2024

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

GEN TOTALS:

65,336.20 Total of 36 Disbursements:

336.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
65,672.20 Total of 37 Checks:

Bank HWY 6659 GENERAL HWY

63.20 SBISSBAM PLAN2150HWY07/18/2024

HWY TOTALS:

63.20 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
63.20 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank LOC 6646 LOCAL STREETS

12.17 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGANBLUE CROSS2431LOC07/18/2024
8.91 SBISSBAM PLAN2432LOC07/18/2024

LOC TOTALS:

21.08 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
21.08 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank MAJ 6633 MAJOR STREETS

7.61 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGANBLUE CROSS2498MAJ07/18/2024
5.85 SBISSBAM PLAN2499MAJ07/18/2024

MAJ TOTALS:

13.46 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
13.46 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank WATER 6620 WATER

550.00 MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCMRWA5964WATER07/02/2024
13,244.30 TIP TOP CUSTOMS LLCTIPTOP5965WATER07/02/2024
4,043.12 HOMEWORKSTRICOU5966WATER07/02/2024

36.57 VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZON5967WATER07/02/2024
801.71 BADGER METER BADGER5968WATER07/11/2024
95.00 ELAN FINANCIAL SERVICESCARDMEMBER5969WATER07/11/2024

1,259.60 HAVILANDHAVILAND5970WATER07/11/2024
109.85 HSV REDI-MIXHSV5971WATER07/11/2024
23.00 VC3,  INCIT RIGHT5972WATER07/11/2024
137.50 KDP RETIREMENT PLAN SVCS, INCKDP5973WATER07/11/2024
696.00 LAKEWOOD NEWSLAKEWOOD5974WATER07/11/2024
369.76 WEX BANKWEX5975WATER07/11/2024
142.86 AT&TAT&T5976WATER07/18/2024

3,344.09 BLUE CARE NETWORKBCN5977WATER07/18/2024
198.50 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGANBLUE CROSS5978WATER07/18/2024
809.85 CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMERS5979WATER07/18/2024
393.44 KCI KCI5980WATER07/18/2024
772.88 MUNICIPAL SUPPLY CO.MUNICIPAL 5981WATER07/18/2024
530.00 QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC.QUADIENT5982WATER07/18/2024
254.32 SBISSBAM PLAN5983WATER07/18/2024

4,747.29 SLC METER, LLCSLC5984WATER07/18/2024
130.95 VERIZON WIRELESSVERIZON5985WATER07/18/2024
44.00 CITY OF IONIAIONIA CITY5986WATER07/23/2024
78.15 WOW!  BUSINESSWOW5987WATER07/23/2024

WATER TOTALS:

32,812.74 Total of 24 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
32,812.74 Total of 24 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

336.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
106,015.13 Total of 86 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 3/3Page: 08/12/2024 01:44 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2024 - 07/31/2024

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

105,679.13 Total of 85 Disbursements:



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Purchases Over $3,000.00 















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 



Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority 
7/25/2024 Special Meeting Minutes 

1 *DRAFT*  

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
MINUTES 

Special Meeting - Thursday, July 25, 2024 
Page Memorial Building, Lake Odessa MI 

 
Present:  Sarah McGarry, Marilyn Danielson, Karen Banks, Bill Rogers, Darwin 

Thompson, Sue Dahms 
Absent:  Ben DeJong 
Staff:   Village Clerk/Treasurer Kathy Forman 
 
I. Call to Order:   Meeting called to order by McGarry at 7:00 a.m. 
 

II. Agenda:  Motion by McGarry, supported by Banks, to approve the agenda.  All ayes, 
motion carried, 6-0. 

 
III. Public Comment:  None. 
 
VI. Action/Discussion Items: 

a) Sound System:  McGarry explained the service as described by the sales contact at 
Mood Media (MUZAK).  There are many plans to choose from. 
 

Motion by Dahms, supported by Danielson to approve the contract with Mood Media for 
60 months at $30 per month and to approve the tech survey cost of $540.  All ayes, motion 
carried, 6-0. 

 
VII. Board Member Comments:   

Banks – Updated DDA members on the mural project.  The project grant that had been 
discussed was not completed. LOAAC decided to write a grant for Art In The Park since it 
will be the 50th Anniversary in 2025.  The LOAAC would like to discuss a collaboration 
with DDA to complete the mural project.  This should be discussed at the September 
meeting. 
 

VIII. Adjournment:  Without objection, meeting adjourned at 7:16 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kathy Forman 
Village Clerk/Treasurer 



Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission  * *  APPROVED 8/12/2024  * * 
Minutes - 7/8/2024 Regular Meeting Page 1 
 

MINUTES 

Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, July 8, 2024 
Page Memorial Building 
Lake Odessa, Michigan 

 
1. Call to Order:  Chair Hermes called the meeting to order at 7:24 p.m. 

Present:  Melanie Baker, Karen Banks, Meg Hermes, Carrie Johnson 
Absent:  Nancy Mattson, Aurora Rice, Ty Nurenberg 
Visitors:  None 
Staff:  None 
 

2. Agenda:  Motion by Johnsoln, supported by Baker, to approve agenda as presented.  All 
ayes; motion carried. 
 

3. Public Comment:   None. 
 

4. Minutes:  Motion by Johnson, support by Hermes, to approve minutes of the 6/11/2024  
regular meeting.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

5. Finance Report:   
a. Revenue/Expense Report:  The revenue/expense report for the period June 2024 was 

reviewed.   
 

b. Accounts Payable:   Motion by Hermes, support by Johnson, to approve the following 
accounts payable: 

Ionia Party Tent 
Rentals Rental of 20x30 tent, 80 chairs, 17 tables 350.00 

Karen Banks Reimbursement - Renewal of 1-yr. subscription to 
Sign-Up Genius 107.89 

Sunshine Artist Renewal of 1-yr. subscription to Sunshine Artist 
magazine (6 issue) 29.95 

Karen Banks Reimbursement - renewal of 1-yr. subscription to 
Flipsnak 168.00 

J-Ad Graphics Printing of 1,350 Art in the Park handbills 108.00 

Hall's Septic Service Rental of 2 regular portable toilets, 1 accessible 
toilet, 2 hand washing stations 615.00 

Amazon Capital 
Services 

Art in the Park supplies (cardstock, glue guns & 
glue, clothespins, parking permit hang tags, manila 
envelopes) 

143.83 

 
 



Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission  * *  APPROVED 8/12/2024  * * 
Minutes - 7/8/2024 Regular Meeting Page 2 
 

All ayes; motion carried. 
 

6. Action/Discussion Items: 
 
a. Meeting Schedule:  Motion by Banks, supported by Johnson, to schedule special 

meeting on Thursday, July 25, 2024 at 6 p.m.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

b. Pavilion Shade Cloths:  Hermes gave an update on assembly of shade clothes for 
pavilion.  Hermes was thanked for her and her husband's many hours to sew and finish 
the shade clothes. 
 

c. Mural Project:  Discussion tabled. 
 

d. Art in the Park: 
 
1) Artists:  As of 7/4/2024, a total of 90 applications have been received, less 

cancellation of three appllications and five booths,  for a total of 87 applications and 
106 booth spaces. 
 

2) Visitor Guides:  Due to approx. $500 price increase from J-Ad Graphics for printing of 
2024 Visitor Guides, Banks solicited quotes from other printers, including a quote 
from River City Reproductions for $2,175 for 1,200 books.  Motion by Hermes, 
support by Johnson, to approve quote from River City Reproductions.  Banks will 
notify J-Ad Graphics that we are giving the work to a different printer.  Baker 
volunteered to distribute the books throughout the community once they come in. 
 

3) Misc. Printing: 

• Banks volunteered to print and assemble artist booth cards. 

• Draft visitor comment card was reviewed.  Consensus was to approve draft and 
forward to printer to print 25 glued pads, 50 cards per pad. 

• Draft artist comment card and bonus program flier was reviewed.  "50th 
Anniversary" will be added to the bonus program flier. 

• Motion by Johnson, support by Banks, to approve printing and assembly of 
retractable sign by River City Reproductions at a cost of $125.  All ayes; motion 
carried. 
 

4) Kids' Zone:  Motion by Hermes, support by Banks to approve appearance by Josh 
Dunigan to present his "Drums for All!" program at the Kids' Zone from noon to 2 
PM, at a cost of $300.  All ayes; motion carried.  Nancy will invite Marilyn Danielson 
to return as Buttons the Clown during the 9 AM to Noon time slot. 
 

5) Volunteers:  Motion by Banks, support by Johnson, to approve up to $50 for a 
Facebook boost for volunteer recruiting.  All ayes; motion carried. 



Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission  * *  APPROVED 8/12/2024  * * 
Minutes - 7/8/2024 Regular Meeting Page 3 
 

 
6) Logistics:  Hermes and Banks will schedule a meeting with the DPW and Police 

Department to discuss parking, road closures, barricades, and other event set-up 
issues. 
 

7) Overnight Security:  Nothing has been set up yet. 
 

8) Instruction Letters to Artists:  Banks will print letters and Baker will fold and stuff 
envelopes for mailing. 
 

9) Opening Flag Ceremony:  Baker has contacted Steve Aldrich from the VFW and they 
are planning to do the opening flag ceremony at 9 AM. 
 

10) Parking:  Banks reviewed with board  members the various parking areas that will be 
used for artist parking and handicap parking. 
 

11) Volunteer T-Shirts:  Existing red volunteer shirts were inventoried.  Motion by Banks, 
support by Johnson, to order 8 medium and 20 XL red shirts from Keith Stanton.  All 
ayes; motion carried. 

 
7. Adjournment:  Without objection, meeting adjourned at 8:53 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Karen Banks, Recording Secretary 

 
 

 



Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission  * *  APPROVED 8/12/2024  * * 
Minutes - 7/25/2024 Special Meeting Page 1 
 

MINUTES 

Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission 
Special Meeting 

Thursday, July 25, 2024 
Page Memorial Building 
Lake Odessa, Michigan 

 
1. Call to Order:  Chair Hermes called the meeting to order at 6:08 p.m. 

Present:  Melanie Baker, Karen Banks, Meg Hermes, Carrie Johnson 
Absent:  Nancy Mattson, Aurora Rice, Ty Nurenberg 
Visitors:  None 
Staff:  None 
 

2. Public Comment:  None. 
 

3. Accounts Payable:  Motion by Johnson, support by Baker to approve the following accounts 
payable: 

 
Josh Dunigan "Drums for All" - Kids' Zone 300.00 

Michael Hulett 1-hour performance 350.00 

Lukas Lenhart 1-hour performance (Luke Lenhart Band) 600.00 

Tim Rodriguez 1-hour performance (Wild Honey Collective) 600.00 

Mark Zickefoose 1-hour performance (Mich. Mafia String Band) 600.00 

Chrouch Communications Rental of 12 two-way radios 144.00 

SEAM  28 Art in the Park volunteer t-shirts 296.80 

Lakewood Area Chamber Annual Membership Dues 40.00 

Karen Banks 100 postage stamps 68.00 

Dornbos Sign, Inc. Permit Parking sign for park turnaround 33.80 

River City Reproductions 
1,500 Visitor Guides, 20 visitor comment card 
notepads, 85 artist booth cards, retractable sign 

2,385.00 

Karen Banks Photocopies, Office Supplies, Concession Supplies   310.53 

 TOTAL: 5,728.13 

 
All ayes; motion carried. 

 
4. Art in the Park Action Items:   

 
a. Tool crib (trailer):  Hermes has made arrangements with Ionia Floral to rent a 5' x 8' 

trailer.  Baker volunteered to pick up the trailer on Thursday, August 1. 
 

b. Two-Way Radios:  Hermes will pick up radios from Chrouch Communications on 
Thursday, August 1. 
 



Lake Odessa Area Arts Commission  * *  APPROVED 8/12/2024  * * 
Minutes - 7/25/2024 Special Meeting Page 2 
 

c. Marking the Park:  Hermes, Banks, Rice and Johnson (after she gets out of a meeting at 
Odessa Township), will mark the park beginning at 3 PM. 
 

d. Volunteers:  Volunteer recruitment has been lagging.  Hermes has posted on the Arts 
Commission and Lake Odessa Community Facebook pages. 
 

e. Logistics:  Hermes gave a recap of the July 19 meeting with Jesse Trout and Eric 
Tollefson re: parking, traffic control, etc. 
 

f. Supplies:  Banks will purchase event supplies at the Ace Hardware in Lake Odessa.  
Hermes will purchase concession supplies at Carl's, using the $40 unspent Lakewood 
Bucks from 2023. 
 

g. Door Prizes for Visitors:  Nurenberg will contact his employer, Buddy's on the Beach, to 
request that their donation of $100 in gift cards be split into four $25 increments. 

 
5. Eagle Scout Project:  Motion by Hermes, support by Johnson, to cover the expense of two 4' 

flat benches from Polly Products at a cost of $562.70, to be installed with Nick Halanski's 
flag pole project near the park bathroom building.  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

6. Adjournment:  Without objection, meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Karen Banks, Recording Secretary 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Departmental Reports 



 

Page Memorial Building ● 839 Fourth Avenue ● Lake Odessa, MI  48849 
 

Phone: (616) 374-7110 ● Fax: (616) 374-0040 ● Web: www.lakeodessa.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: President Banks and Village Council Members 
 
FROM: Gregg Guetschow, Village Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Summary and Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: August 13, 2024 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 
 
Resolution 2024-44 Approving Amendments to Encroachment Agreement. Action on 
this resolution was tabled during Council’s July 15 meeting. The following are the comments 
about the resolution that were included in my July 11 Village Manager Report:  
 

In 2022, the Village entered into an agreement with Fourth Avenue Inn and Bistro, 
LLC, a business owned by Bill Rogers, that allowed encroachments in a portion of the 
right-of-way of Second Street. These encroachments included the construction of a 
deck, installation of tables and umbrellas, and concrete barriers in adjacent parking 
spaces. Mr. Rogers is considering options for future use of 1002 Fourth Avenue that 
could include the sale of the business. The encroachment agreement does not 
currently contain any language providing for assigning rights under the agreement to a 
successor owner. The proposed resolution would amend the agreement to add this 
language and would also correct an error in the description of the property subject to 
encroachment.  
 
You will note that, if approved, assignment of Mr. Rogers rights to a successor would 
require Council approval. If rights are assigned, Council does not relinquish any of its 
rights under the agreement that allow for its termination at any time. 
 

I am aware that citizen comments and discussion during the July 15 meeting focused in part 
on the impact of the encroachments on parking availability.  
 
The purpose of the proposed resolution, as noted above, is to address two issues: 1) 
correcting an error in describing the area affected by the encroachment agreement and 2) 
permitting the assignment of rights under the agreement to a successor owner, with Council 
approval. The latter is particularly important as Mr. Rogers considers the future of his 
property.



 
 
This does not mean that downtown parking needs are unimportant. Rather, it is to suggest 
that this matter should be balanced against the interest in fostering a dynamic central 
business district environment. 
 
As stated above, Council’s approval of the proposed resolution does not limit its right to 
terminate the encroachment agreement at some future date. 
 
Resolution 2024-47 Accepting Financial Statements for the Year Ended February 29, 
2024. Each year, the Village contracts for an audit of its financial statements. An electronic 
copy of the financial statements is included in the agenda packet and printed copies have 
been made available to Council. 
 
It is usually the case that a formal presentation of the statements is given by the auditor. They 
were unable to arrange their schedules to provide this presentation during this meeting. The 
financial statements and other related reports must be submitted to the Michigan Department 
of Treasury by the end of August.  
 
I am requesting that Council approved the proposed resolution so that we can submit 
documents by the deadline. We can also discuss at the time you consider this matter whether 
Council wishes to have a presentation by the auditors at a later date. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS:  
 
Lakewood Recreational Authority Dissolution. During the July 15 meeting, Council voted 
to proceed with a joint resolution with Odessa Township to dissolve the Lakewood 
Recreational Authority. I have not had an opportunity to follow up with Township officials to 
learn if they voted to do the same. 
 
Sprague Property Sale. After many delays, Mr. Sprague’s attorneys and ours have 
concluded discussions regarding the language of the purchase agreement and deed through 
which the Village will sell to Mr. Sprague a small parcel of property on Musgrove Highway. 
Council has previously approved this sale. We expect the signing of documents to take place 
soon. 
 
Ordinances. I have identified three areas of our operations for which new ordinances or 
ordinance amendments should be considered to address deficiencies: 
 
Streets. The Village’s streets ordinance is very basic and does not adequately address a 
range of matters related to uses that can sometimes occur within right-of-way areas. For 
example, there has been discussion by the DDA about sidewalk obstructions in the central 
business district. In much the same way, there is a lack of clear authority to charge for the 
removal of items that might be placed at the curb adjacent to a home. 
 
Property Maintenance. The establishment of the code enforcement officer position has 
highlighted the need to provide better tools for him to use in dealing with some of the issues 
he encounters. Although the current ordinances are suitable for resolving typical junk and 
trash complaints, they are inadequate when the problem is one of general unsightliness



resulting from scattered accumulations of household items or overgrowth of untended 
vegetation. 
 
Administrative Code. The ordinance establishing the Village Manager position requires the 
preparation of an administrative code, an ordinance that describes the departmental structure 
of the organization. This was never done. Put simply, the administrative code defines which 
functions fall under which departments. A part of the value of such an ordinance is to ensure 
that changes in departmental structure are the subject of discussion between the village 
manager and the Council prior to adding or reassigning functions. 
 
I will be working to draft proposed language for Council consideration at future meetings. 
 



  Department of Public Works 

July 11th 2024 to August 15th 2024 

Council Report 

Parks & Beach 

Art in the park setup and tear down. The low areas along the park path had gravel added to 
them prior to the busy weekend. We sprayed algaecide on the wooden playground structure of 
Swiftys Place. Two new tables and trash receptacles have been purchased for the park and will 
be installed soon. The Eagle Scout project has been completed.  

Streets 

We have been busy removing and replacing sidewalk. Michigan Paving completed the street 
paving project on 1st St, 3rd Ave and the Fairground St entrance from Jordan Lake Ave. We 
lowered the steel structures, streets were pulverized/graded, base course asphalt, structures 
raised and top course paving completed in 3 days. We were busy! A total 818 tons of asphalt 
was used to complete the project. We were also able to undercut and widen part of 3rd Ave by 
Tupper, adding an additional 5 new parking spaces. We have completed building up the street 
shoulders with gravel and raising driveway approaches where necessary. There is still some 
work to complete on the main entrance to the Fire Department. After the street was paved, the 
Fire Chief felt the approach to be too steep and stressing trucks as they drove over it. We raised 
the sidewalk and I am coordinating with the paving company to get some additional asphalt 
work completed on that approach.  

Water 

There were a larger than average number of nonpayment water turn offs this quarter. Twin City 
began bean packaging in early July and we have kept up with water demands without issue.  

DPW  

Compost bags are being collected each Monday. Brush collection in July went well. The next 
and final scheduled brush collection will be October 21st. There are a lot of residents still piling 
brush curbside and it is sitting there for weeks and sometimes months between collection 
dates. We are relaying the schedule to the best of our ability, but it unfortunately is not 
reaching several residents. We are continuing to fill the downtown flower pots with water. Six 
hazardous trees were removed along the streets and in the park.  

 



Purchase Request 

The Page Building renovation will soon begin. During planning for materials and mock up of 
different designs, we determined there will be issues trying to properly replace the soffit/trim 
around the current glass columns in the front of the building and the column design does not 
look good with anything modern. One of the glass columns is also leaning. I will not tell you 
which one unless requested to, because once you see it, you cannot unsee it! After discussion 
in house, it was unanimously agreed upon to replace the glass columns with something more 
modern and structurally sound if possible. We are proposing a manufactured stone base to 
accommodate the large concrete pillar foundations. Above the stone base will be Azek wrapped 
pillars. This will modernize the building, provide the necessary design to properly trim around 
and complete the remodel without leaving it in a stage of “unfinished” look. The contractor is 
struggling to obtain quotes for the stone work. He has given me a verbal estimate of $25,000 to 
replace the six pillars and make any necessary structural repairs. This estimate is not set in 
stone yet, and a quote should be provided very soon. 

 

Additional Comments 

I applied for and received another tree grant from Consumers Energy. We will plant 15 maple 
trees along various streets in October.   

The final brush collection date of the year will be October 21st. Any brush placed curbside after 
7:00 a.m. on the 21st, will not be collected until the spring. We ask that no brush be placed 
curbside during leaf collection, as it will likely plug the leaf vacuum and can cause major 
damage to the machine. 

Leaves will start drying on some soft tree species and begin falling before the next council 
meeting in September. There are always residents who rake piles into the streets several weeks 
prior to leaf collection beginning. We will announce on the Village website and Facebook page 
when leaf collection begins. Only then are residents encouraged to rake leaves to the curbsides. 
We typically begin leaf collection after the third week of October and the final brush collection 
has been completed. For several safety reasons, we ask that leaves do not be placed in the 
streets at any time.  



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

20.79 412,705.70 109,483.28 108,294.30 521,000.00 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES101-000-402.000
0.22 44,902.84 97.16 97.16 45,000.00 CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX101-000-410.000
40.33 268.50 31.00 181.50 450.00 MANUFACTURED HOUSING FEES101-000-428.000
19.64 6,428.82 1,585.95 1,571.18 8,000.00 PROPERTY TAX ADMINISTRATION FEE101-000-447.000
66.43 604.30 0.00 1,195.70 1,800.00 LIQUOR LICENSE FEES101-000-476.000
46.95 1,113.98 480.66 986.02 2,100.00 CABLE TV FRANCHISE101-000-477.000
80.00 50.00 0.00 200.00 250.00 SPECIAL USE/ZBA PERMIT101-000-490.000
67.50 325.00 200.00 675.00 1,000.00 ZONING PERMIT FEES101-000-490.001
96.51 331.55 0.00 9,168.45 9,500.00 METRO ACT101-000-542.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 TREE GRANT101-000-549.000
20.03 43,985.30 0.00 11,014.70 55,000.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX101-000-573.000
32.48 143,476.00 0.00 69,024.00 212,500.00 STATE REVENUE SHARING101-000-574.000
33.38 34,642.00 0.00 17,358.00 52,000.00 EVIP PMTS101-000-574.001
100.00 (21,859.54)0.00 21,859.54 0.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM LOCAL UNITS101-000-580.000
0.00 27,000.00 0.00 0.00 27,000.00 VEHICLE RENTAL INCOME101-000-601.000

195.00 (475.00)100.00 975.00 500.00 MOWING 101-000-632.000
208.00 (540.00)0.00 1,040.00 500.00 MAY CLEAN UP (NON-RESIDENTS)101-000-635.000
247.09 (441.27)0.00 741.27 300.00 PENALTIES & INTEREST ON TAXES101-000-643.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 PARKING TICKET FEES101-000-656.000
31.85 2,385.22 43.96 1,114.78 3,500.00 ORDINANCE FINES101-000-657.000
64.36 3,385.64 1,187.78 6,114.36 9,500.00 INTEREST101-000-665.000
73.33 400.00 200.00 1,100.00 1,500.00 RENTS-BUILDINGS-LAND101-000-667.000
100.00 (100.10)0.00 100.10 0.00 REIMBURSMENTS101-000-676.000
163.47 (317.35)0.00 817.35 500.00 MISC REVENUE101-000-684.000
42.62 4,590.07 0.00 3,409.93 8,000.00 MISC REVENUE-MISC REVENUE GENERAL101-000-684.001
33.20 334.00 10.00 166.00 500.00 MISC REVENUE-POLICE101-000-684.010

26.69 706,345.66 113,419.79 257,204.34 963,550.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

26.69 706,345.66 113,419.79 257,204.34 963,550.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 101 - GOVERNING BODY

48.75 4,612.50 825.00 4,387.50 9,000.00 TRUSTEE MEETING FEES101-101-702.708
0.00 15,300.00 0.00 0.00 15,300.00 TREASURER - CLERK WAGES101-101-702.709
17.21 1,614.36 63.08 335.64 1,950.00 EMPLOYER FICA101-101-710.000
0.00 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION101-101-711.000
17.67 246.99 0.00 53.01 300.00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION101-101-723.000
13.25 1,301.30 116.89 198.70 1,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-101-727.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 SUPPLIES101-101-728.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 MEALS & MILEAGE101-101-730.000

182.97 (165.94)0.00 365.94 200.00 POSTAGE101-101-740.000
66.69 1,066.00 0.00 2,134.00 3,200.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS101-101-750.000
0.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-101-752.000
0.00 15.00 0.00 0.00 15.00 SAFE DEPOSIT BOX RENTAL101-101-754.000
31.49 13,701.16 297.50 6,298.84 20,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-101-801.000
86.19 1,380.75 749.94 8,619.25 10,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES101-101-805.000
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 AUDIT SERVICES101-101-806.000
27.80 649.83 43.65 250.17 900.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE101-101-850.000
85.50 1,160.00 0.00 6,840.00 8,000.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION101-101-880.000
45.62 652.60 0.00 547.40 1,200.00 PRINTING & PUBLISHING101-101-900.000
0.00 5,200.00 0.00 0.00 5,200.00 COUNTER DRAIN101-101-957.000
56.64 433.56 57.90 566.44 1,000.00 MISC EXPENSE101-101-963.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 2/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

40.00 60.00 0.00 40.00 100.00 NOTARY & FIDUCIARY BONDS101-101-991.000

33.61 60,528.11 2,153.96 30,636.89 91,165.00 Total Dept 101 - GOVERNING BODY

Dept 172 - MANAGERS
0.00 18,500.00 0.00 0.00 18,500.00 DEPT HEAD WAGES101-172-702.001
0.00 1,450.00 0.00 0.00 1,450.00 EMPLOYER FICA101-172-710.000
0.00 1,850.00 0.00 0.00 1,850.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION101-172-711.000
3.03 484.85 3.03 15.15 500.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-172-720.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 LIFE INSURANCE EXPENSE101-172-721.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION101-172-723.000
10.64 1,787.28 19.99 212.72 2,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-172-727.000
63.48 73.04 0.00 126.96 200.00 MEALS & MILEAGE101-172-730.000
0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS101-172-750.000
40.11 2,994.75 399.00 2,005.25 5,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-172-752.000
114.92 (3,731.11)4,291.04 28,731.11 25,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-172-801.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES101-172-805.000
33.44 798.76 80.22 401.24 1,200.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE101-172-850.000

53.47 27,407.57 4,793.28 31,492.43 58,900.00 Total Dept 172 - MANAGERS

Dept 265 - PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING
12.56 1,748.75 0.00 251.25 2,000.00 SUPPLIES101-265-728.000
103.54 (31.87)530.00 931.87 900.00 POSTAGE101-265-740.000
40.07 719.13 100.16 480.87 1,200.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE101-265-850.000
4.12 3,835.03 0.00 164.97 4,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-BUILDING101-265-931.001
24.91 1,501.85 0.00 498.15 2,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-EQUIPMENT101-265-931.002
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 MAINTENANCE-LANDSCAPING & GROUNDS101-265-931.003
52.98 35,267.10 39,732.90 39,732.90 75,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY101-265-970.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 HARDWARE101-265-980.001
39.80 301.00 39.00 199.00 500.00 SOFTWARE101-265-980.002

45.64 50,340.99 40,402.06 42,259.01 92,600.00 Total Dept 265 - PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING

Dept 301 - POLICE
37.72 51,068.58 6,191.16 30,931.42 82,000.00 DEPARTMENT HEAD WAGES101-301-702.001
23.49 99,458.86 9,836.80 30,541.14 130,000.00 FULL TIME WAGES101-301-702.704
34.98 5,201.82 2,311.88 2,798.18 8,000.00 OVER TIME WAGES101-301-702.705
39.60 15,099.00 2,580.00 9,901.00 25,000.00 PART TIME WAGES101-301-702.706
100.00 0.00 0.00 3,300.00 3,300.00 NO FRINGE BENEFIT INCENTIVE101-301-702.717
29.15 14,241.47 1,586.76 5,858.53 20,100.00 EMPLOYER FICA101-301-710.000
29.91 17,172.81 2,001.99 7,327.19 24,500.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION101-301-711.000
13.64 21,070.64 648.44 3,329.36 24,400.00 HEALTH INSURANCE EXPENSE101-301-712.000
0.00 10,800.00 0.00 0.00 10,800.00 HEALTH INS EXPENSE-HEALTH SAVINGS101-301-712.001
14.75 2,813.15 97.37 486.85 3,300.00 DENTAL INSURANCE EXPENSE101-301-713.000
15.43 296.00 10.80 54.00 350.00 OPTICAL PLAN EXPENSE101-301-714.000
0.00 360.00 0.00 0.00 360.00 WELLNESS PROGRAM101-301-716.000
28.35 2,185.40 316.48 864.60 3,050.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-301-720.000
22.01 935.84 93.60 264.16 1,200.00 LIFE INSURANCE EXPENSE101-301-721.000
63.48 1,460.63 0.00 2,539.37 4,000.00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION101-301-723.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT101-301-724.001
15.87 631.01 0.00 118.99 750.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-301-727.000
45.79 1,084.30 235.97 915.70 2,000.00 SUPPLIES101-301-728.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 3/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 RESERVE SUPPLIES101-301-729.000
5.45 472.76 0.00 27.24 500.00 MEALS & MILEAGE101-301-730.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 VESTS101-301-731.000
71.20 576.00 0.00 1,424.00 2,000.00 MEDICAL & PHYSICALS101-301-741.000
30.96 1,380.90 0.00 619.10 2,000.00 CLOTHING EXPENSE101-301-744.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 UNIFORM CLEANING101-301-745.000
0.00 525.00 0.00 0.00 525.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS101-301-750.000
15.25 8,050.96 397.83 1,449.04 9,500.00 GASOLINE PURCHASES101-301-751.000
20.45 3,977.73 0.00 1,022.27 5,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-301-752.000
66.33 505.00 0.00 995.00 1,500.00 RANGE QUALIFICATION101-301-752.001
89.22 1,132.05 0.00 9,367.95 10,500.00 MEADOWBROOK INSURANCE101-301-755.000
41.74 1,747.78 0.00 1,252.22 3,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-301-801.000
0.87 991.27 8.73 8.73 1,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES101-301-805.000
41.92 3,571.93 518.73 2,578.07 6,150.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE101-301-850.000
0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION101-301-880.000
15.43 1,268.60 0.00 231.40 1,500.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-EQUIPMENT101-301-931.002
3.37 2,415.66 84.34 84.34 2,500.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-VEHICLE101-301-931.004
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 ACT 302 TRAINING101-301-958.000
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT101-301-970.001
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-OFFICE FURNITURE101-301-970.003
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 HARDWARE101-301-980.001
24.60 1,131.00 77.00 369.00 1,500.00 SOFTWARE101-301-980.002

28.48 298,026.15 26,997.88 118,658.85 416,685.00 Total Dept 301 - POLICE

Dept 441 - PUBLIC WORKS
37.16 15,081.33 1,784.80 8,918.67 24,000.00 DEPT HEAD WAGES101-441-702.001
39.65 30,477.36 4,040.00 20,022.64 50,500.00 FULL TIME WAGES101-441-702.704
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 OVER TIME WAGES101-441-702.705
46.37 3,486.06 741.22 3,013.94 6,500.00 PART TIME WAGES101-441-702.706
55.00 1,350.00 0.00 1,650.00 3,000.00 NO FRINGE BENEFIT INCENTIVE101-441-702.717
37.96 4,032.48 480.30 2,467.52 6,500.00 EMPLOYER FICA101-441-710.000
46.97 4,374.94 763.80 3,875.06 8,250.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION101-441-711.000
47.89 4,116.56 1,279.36 3,783.44 7,900.00 HEALTH INSURANCE EXPENSE101-441-712.000
0.00 4,800.00 0.00 0.00 4,800.00 HEALTH INS EXPENSE-HEALTH SAVINGS101-441-712.001
41.18 823.53 201.95 576.47 1,400.00 DENTAL INSURANCE EXPENSE101-441-713.000
33.05 133.90 13.22 66.10 200.00 OPTICAL PLAN EXPENSE101-441-714.000
33.40 799.15 80.17 400.85 1,200.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-441-720.000
37.14 220.00 26.00 130.00 350.00 LIFE INSURANCE EXPENSE101-441-721.000
74.77 1,261.55 0.00 3,738.45 5,000.00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION101-441-723.000
8.22 1,376.77 123.23 123.23 1,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-441-727.000
10.65 3,573.90 90.94 426.10 4,000.00 SUPPLIES101-441-728.000
70.40 74.00 0.00 176.00 250.00 MEDICAL & PHYSICALS101-441-741.000
56.44 479.13 0.00 620.87 1,100.00 CLOTHING EXPENSE101-441-744.000
0.00 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS101-441-750.000
21.42 6,679.26 557.58 1,820.74 8,500.00 GASOLINE PURCHASES101-441-751.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-441-752.000
87.01 1,104.25 0.00 7,395.75 8,500.00 MEADOWBROOK INSURANCE101-441-755.000
0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 LICENSE FEES101-441-756.000
0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-441-801.000
48.46 1,030.78 162.57 969.22 2,000.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE101-441-850.000
30.96 2,071.16 142.14 928.84 3,000.00 GAS AND ELECTRIC101-441-920.000
4.45 3,822.06 0.00 177.94 4,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-BUILDING101-441-931.001
28.38 7,162.41 400.66 2,837.59 10,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-EQUIPMENT101-441-931.002
8.86 455.71 0.00 44.29 500.00 MAINTENANCE-LANDSCAPING & GROUNDS101-441-931.003



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 4/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-VEHICLE101-441-931.004
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-TREES101-441-931.005
58.89 2,261.00 0.00 3,239.00 5,500.00 MAY CLEAN UP101-441-933.000
53.05 422.55 95.49 477.45 900.00 REFUSE REMOVAL101-441-934.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL EXPENSE101-441-955.002
11.44 1,328.35 0.00 171.65 1,500.00 SAFETY101-441-955.003
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 MISC EXPENSE101-441-963.000
0.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 PROJECT COSTS101-441-967.000
64.78 2,289.29 0.00 4,210.71 6,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY101-441-970.000

36.99 123,087.48 10,983.43 72,262.52 195,350.00 Total Dept 441 - PUBLIC WORKS

Dept 448 - PUBLIC UTILITIES-STREET LIGHTING
44.04 19,025.18 3,148.74 14,974.82 34,000.00 STREET LIGHT EXPENSE101-448-924.000

44.04 19,025.18 3,148.74 14,974.82 34,000.00 Total Dept 448 - PUBLIC UTILITIES-STREET LIGHTING

Dept 536 - WATER/SEWER
40.48 2,083.16 708.42 1,416.84 3,500.00 SEWER EXPENSE101-536-928.000
32.92 1,676.97 498.57 823.03 2,500.00 WATER EXPENSE101-536-929.000

37.33 3,760.13 1,206.99 2,239.87 6,000.00 Total Dept 536 - WATER/SEWER

Dept 722 - ZONING
35.68 4,759.60 528.08 2,640.40 7,400.00 PART TIME WAGES101-722-702.706
29.71 478.00 40.40 202.00 680.00 EMPLOYER FICA101-722-710.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-722-727.000
0.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 PLANNING & ZONING-OTHER101-722-802.000
0.00 275.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE101-722-850.000

7.37 35,712.60 568.48 2,842.40 38,555.00 Total Dept 722 - ZONING

Dept 728 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
100.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-728-801.000

100.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Total Dept 728 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Dept 751 - PARKS AND RECREATION
47.48 3,676.41 2,293.66 3,323.59 7,000.00 PART TIME WAGES101-751-702.706
42.38 345.73 175.48 254.27 600.00 EMPLOYER FICA101-751-710.000
13.07 695.46 50.62 104.54 800.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION101-751-711.000
36.96 170.22 0.00 99.78 270.00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION101-751-723.000
34.38 1,640.50 0.00 859.50 2,500.00 SUPPLIES101-751-728.000
103.60 (9.00)0.00 259.00 250.00 SWIFTY'S PLACE101-751-882.000
40.17 2,273.72 376.92 1,526.28 3,800.00 GAS AND ELECTRIC101-751-920.000
2.57 2,435.82 0.00 64.18 2,500.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-BUILDING101-751-931.001
73.37 1,065.23 0.00 2,934.77 4,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-EQUIPMENT101-751-931.002
32.49 5,063.29 349.14 2,436.71 7,500.00 MAINTENANCE-LANDSCAPING & GROUNDS101-751-931.003
187.30 (13,967.94)0.00 29,967.94 16,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY101-751-970.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 5/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

92.50 3,389.44 3,245.82 41,830.56 45,220.00 Total Dept 751 - PARKS AND RECREATION

36.64 621,277.65 95,500.64 359,197.35 980,475.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

602.62 85,068.01 17,919.15 (101,993.01)(16,925.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

36.64 621,277.65 95,500.64 359,197.35 980,475.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
26.69 706,345.66 113,419.79 257,204.34 963,550.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 6/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

42.42 119,481.89 17,199.93 88,018.11 207,500.00 ACT 51 / STREETS202-000-546.000
52.72 2,836.94 653.29 3,163.06 6,000.00 INTEREST202-000-665.000

42.71 122,318.83 17,853.22 91,181.17 213,500.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

42.71 122,318.83 17,853.22 91,181.17 213,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 449 - STREET DEPT (ACT 51)

0.00 2,300.00 0.00 0.00 2,300.00 DEPT HEAD WAGES202-449-702.001
0.00 175.00 0.00 0.00 175.00 EMPLOYER FICA202-449-710.000
0.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 230.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION202-449-711.000

100.00 (1.90)0.38 1.90 0.00 ADMIN BENEFITS202-449-712.002
43.38 679.42 0.00 520.58 1,200.00 COLD/HOT PATCH202-449-731.000
0.00 3,700.00 0.00 0.00 3,700.00 SALT/SAND ROADS202-449-734.000
4.44 17,200.00 0.00 800.00 18,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES202-449-801.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 AUDIT SERVICES202-449-806.000
9.46 3,168.90 0.00 331.10 3,500.00 STREET STRIPING202-449-863.000
17.95 820.50 0.00 179.50 1,000.00 STREET SIGNS202-449-865.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 MISC EXPENSE202-449-963.000
0.00 75,000.00 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 TRANSFERS OUT202-449-995.000

1.70 106,271.92 0.38 1,833.08 108,105.00 Total Dept 449 - STREET DEPT (ACT 51)

Dept 450 - MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION
12.33 11,748.30 330.56 1,651.70 13,400.00 MAINTENANCE WAGES202-450-702.001
11.49 973.60 25.30 126.40 1,100.00 MAINTENANCE EMPLOYER FICA202-450-710.000
23.23 1,028.75 62.25 311.25 1,340.00 MAINTENANCE ER SHARE OF PENSION202-450-711.000
4.51 1,384.60 13.08 65.40 1,450.00 MAINTENANCE BENEFITS202-450-712.002

12.46 15,135.25 431.19 2,154.75 17,290.00 Total Dept 450 - MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION

Dept 869 - SNOW REMOVAL
0.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 SNOW REMOVAL WAGES202-869-702.001
0.00 310.00 0.00 0.00 310.00 SNOW REMOVAL EMPLOYER FICA202-869-710.000
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 SNOW REMOVAL SHARE OF PENSION202-869-711.000

0.00 4,210.00 0.00 0.00 4,210.00 Total Dept 869 - SNOW REMOVAL

3.08 125,617.17 431.57 3,987.83 129,605.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

103.93 (3,298.34)17,421.65 87,193.34 83,895.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

3.08 125,617.17 431.57 3,987.83 129,605.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
42.71 122,318.83 17,853.22 91,181.17 213,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 7/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

42.64 41,584.04 6,041.52 30,915.96 72,500.00 ACT 51 / STREETS203-000-546.000
122.54 (619.83)730.82 3,369.83 2,750.00 INTEREST203-000-665.000
120.43 (7,762.11)0.00 45,762.11 38,000.00 MISC REVENUE203-000-684.000
0.00 75,000.00 0.00 0.00 75,000.00 TRANSFERS IN203-000-699.000

42.52 108,202.10 6,772.34 80,047.90 188,250.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

42.52 108,202.10 6,772.34 80,047.90 188,250.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 449 - STREET DEPT (ACT 51)

0.00 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 DEPT HEAD WAGES203-449-702.001
0.00 125.00 0.00 0.00 125.00 EMPLOYER FICA203-449-710.000
0.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION203-449-711.000

100.00 (0.75)0.15 0.75 0.00 ADMIN BENEFITS203-449-712.002
43.38 679.43 0.00 520.57 1,200.00 COLD/HOT PATCH203-449-731.000
0.00 3,700.00 0.00 0.00 3,700.00 SALT/SAND ROADS203-449-734.000
2.86 27,200.00 0.00 800.00 28,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES203-449-801.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 AUDIT SERVICES203-449-806.000
22.07 1,168.90 0.00 331.10 1,500.00 STREET STRIPING203-449-863.000
14.75 852.50 0.00 147.50 1,000.00 STREET SIGNS203-449-865.000
0.00 107,000.00 0.00 0.00 107,000.00 STREET RE-SURFACING203-449-866.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 VEHICLE RENTAL203-449-944.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 VEHICLE RENTAL - STREET REPAIRS203-449-944.867
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 VEHICLE RENTAL - SNOW REMOVAL203-449-944.869
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 MISC EXPENSE203-449-963.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 STREET REPAIRS203-449-970.006

1.13 157,545.08 0.15 1,799.92 159,345.00 Total Dept 449 - STREET DEPT (ACT 51)

Dept 450 - MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION
15.73 14,157.44 528.86 2,642.56 16,800.00 MAINTENANCE WAGES203-450-702.001
15.55 1,097.87 40.48 202.13 1,300.00 MAINTENANCE EMPLOYER FICA203-450-710.000
29.64 1,182.00 99.60 498.00 1,680.00 MAINTENANCE ER SHARE OF PENSION203-450-711.000
6.75 1,445.35 20.93 104.65 1,550.00 MAINTENANCE BENEFITS203-450-712.002

16.16 17,882.66 689.87 3,447.34 21,330.00 Total Dept 450 - MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION

Dept 869 - SNOW REMOVAL
0.00 3,900.00 0.00 0.00 3,900.00 SNOW REMOVAL WAGES203-869-702.001
0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 SNOW REMOVAL FICA203-869-710.000
0.00 390.00 0.00 0.00 390.00 SNOW REMOVAL SHARE OF PENSION203-869-711.000

0.00 4,640.00 0.00 0.00 4,640.00 Total Dept 869 - SNOW REMOVAL

2.83 180,067.74 690.02 5,247.26 185,315.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 8/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND

2,548.57 (71,865.64)6,082.32 74,800.64 2,935.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2.83 180,067.74 690.02 5,247.26 185,315.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
42.52 108,202.10 6,772.34 80,047.90 188,250.00 TOTAL REVENUES



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 9/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

21.10 181,467.89 49,064.95 48,532.11 230,000.00 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES204-000-402.000
0.20 21,956.46 43.54 43.54 22,000.00 CURRENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX204-000-410.000
25.43 21,625.21 0.00 7,374.79 29,000.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX204-000-573.000
72.10 1,395.01 726.04 3,604.99 5,000.00 INTEREST204-000-665.000

20.82 226,444.57 49,834.53 59,555.43 286,000.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

20.82 226,444.57 49,834.53 59,555.43 286,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 446 - HIGHWAYS, STREETS (NOT ACT 51)

0.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 ADMINISTRATION WAGES204-446-702.001
0.00 425.00 0.00 0.00 425.00 ADMINISTRATION FICA204-446-710.000
0.00 550.00 0.00 0.00 550.00 ADMIN EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION204-446-711.000
0.43 995.70 0.86 4.30 1,000.00 ADMIN BENEFITS204-446-712.002
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES204-446-801.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 AUDIT SERVICES204-446-806.000
1.12 14,832.40 0.00 167.60 15,000.00 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM204-446-970.000

100.00 0.00 0.00 118,000.00 118,000.00 CAPITAL IMPROV BOND II - PRIN204-446-991.000
55.71 4,207.74 0.00 5,292.26 9,500.00 CAP IMPROV BOND II INTEREST204-446-994.000

76.46 38,010.84 0.86 123,464.16 161,475.00 Total Dept 446 - HIGHWAYS, STREETS (NOT ACT 51)

Dept 450 - MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION
27.72 25,840.19 1,983.17 9,909.81 35,750.00 STREET ADMIN SALARY204-450-702.001
26.14 2,141.86 151.72 758.14 2,900.00 STREET ADMIN FICA204-450-710.000
51.52 1,757.50 373.50 1,867.50 3,625.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION204-450-711.000
16.19 1,613.30 62.34 311.70 1,925.00 STREET ADMIN BENEFITS204-450-712.002

29.07 31,352.85 2,570.73 12,847.15 44,200.00 Total Dept 450 - MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION

66.28 69,363.69 2,571.59 136,311.31 205,675.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

95.56 157,080.88 47,262.94 (76,755.88)80,325.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

66.28 69,363.69 2,571.59 136,311.31 205,675.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
20.82 226,444.57 49,834.53 59,555.43 286,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 10/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

49.17 19,315.75 0.00 18,684.25 38,000.00 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES248-000-402.000
129.96 (89.87)88.96 389.87 300.00 INTEREST248-000-665.000
0.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 900.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES248-000-674.000

48.66 20,125.88 88.96 19,074.12 39,200.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

48.66 20,125.88 88.96 19,074.12 39,200.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 275 - DDA

0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES248-275-727.000
0.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 20.00 POSTAGE248-275-740.000

160.00 (15.00)0.00 40.00 25.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS248-275-750.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING248-275-752.000
0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES248-275-801.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 AUDIT SERVICES248-275-806.000
75.00 250.00 0.00 750.00 1,000.00 ADVERTISING248-275-881.000
75.04 2,071.53 138.00 6,228.47 8,300.00 BEAUTIFICATION 248-275-967.000
3.94 960.60 0.00 39.40 1,000.00 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS248-275-967.002

27.10 18,987.13 138.00 7,057.87 26,045.00 Total Dept 275 - DDA

27.10 18,987.13 138.00 7,057.87 26,045.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

91.34 1,138.75 (49.04)12,016.25 13,155.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

27.10 18,987.13 138.00 7,057.87 26,045.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
48.66 20,125.88 88.96 19,074.12 39,200.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 11/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 290 - ARTS
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 STATE GRANTS290-000-540.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 ART IN THE PARK REVENUE-NEXT FY290-000-602.001
90.00 50.00 280.00 450.00 500.00 FOOD BOOTH FEES290-000-602.003
107.67 (230.00)1,120.00 3,230.00 3,000.00 ART IN THE PARK REVENUE290-000-602.290
126.76 (53.52)53.01 253.52 200.00 INTEREST290-000-665.000
110.00 (700.00)0.00 7,700.00 7,000.00 DONATIONS-PRIVATE SOURCES290-000-674.000

49.09 12,066.48 1,453.01 11,633.52 23,700.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

49.09 12,066.48 1,453.01 11,633.52 23,700.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 752 - ARTS

26.65 110.03 39.97 39.97 150.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES290-752-727.000
47.94 156.17 143.83 143.83 300.00 SUPPLIES290-752-728.000
27.20 182.00 68.00 68.00 250.00 POSTAGE290-752-740.000
(33.62)267.23 4.26 (67.23)200.00 CREDIT CARD FEES290-752-770.000
26.67 110.00 40.00 40.00 150.00 OPERATING EXPENSE290-752-793.000
59.36 203.20 296.80 296.80 500.00 T-SHIRTS290-752-794.000
106.86 (113.20)0.00 1,763.20 1,650.00 SOUND290-752-795.000
14.60 341.59 58.41 58.41 400.00 CONCESSIONS SUPPLIES290-752-798.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 SECURITY290-752-803.000
0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 AUDIT SERVICES290-752-806.000
96.00 6.00 144.00 144.00 150.00 RADIOS290-752-851.000
36.37 381.81 43.65 218.19 600.00 TELEPHONE290-752-852.000
91.30 725.26 3,044.79 7,606.74 8,332.00 ADVERTISING290-752-881.000
0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 OPER EXP-GRANT DISBURSEMENT290-752-882.000
0.00 3,250.00 0.00 0.00 3,250.00 PUBLIC ART PROJECT290-752-883.000
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 KIDS AREA290-752-895.000

136.11 (650.00)2,450.00 2,450.00 1,800.00 ENTERTAINMENT290-752-898.000
102.50 (15.00)615.00 615.00 600.00 PORT A POTTY290-752-953.000
122.92 (275.00)0.00 1,475.00 1,200.00 GOLF CART RENTALS290-752-955.000
43.75 450.00 350.00 350.00 800.00 TENT, TABLES, CHAIR RENTALS290-752-956.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE290-752-963.000
71.25 57.50 0.00 142.50 200.00 REFUND/REIMBURSEMENTS290-752-964.000
39.47 2,421.06 0.00 1,578.94 4,000.00 PARK IMPROVEMENTS290-752-967.001

66.41 8,558.65 7,298.71 16,923.35 25,482.00 Total Dept 752 - ARTS

66.41 8,558.65 7,298.71 16,923.35 25,482.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

296.85 3,507.83 (5,845.70)(5,289.83)(1,782.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

66.41 8,558.65 7,298.71 16,923.35 25,482.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
49.09 12,066.48 1,453.01 11,633.52 23,700.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 290 - ARTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 12/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 INTEREST291-000-665.000

0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 753 - CAR SHOW

100.00 (5.07)0.00 5.07 0.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION291-753-880.000

100.00 (5.07)0.00 5.07 0.00 Total Dept 753 - CAR SHOW

100.00 (5.07)0.00 5.07 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

16.90 35.07 0.00 (5.07)30.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 (5.07)0.00 5.07 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 13/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

100.00 (140.00)35.00 140.00 0.00 SEWER NSF REVENUE590-000-590.603
100.00 (604,322.83)199,887.79 604,322.83 0.00 SEWER REVENUE590-000-614.000
100.00 (3,689.89)0.00 3,689.89 0.00 SEWER PENALTIES590-000-615.000
100.00 (80.00)40.00 80.00 0.00 LAB TESTING REVENUE590-000-619.000

100.00 (608,232.72)199,962.79 608,232.72 0.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

100.00 (608,232.72)199,962.79 608,232.72 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (608,232.72)199,962.79 608,232.72 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (608,232.72)199,962.79 608,232.72 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 14/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

40.70 563,308.82 108,941.84 386,691.18 950,000.00 FINAL READ INCOME591-000-642.001
204.39 (4,175.40)5,649.64 8,175.40 4,000.00 WATER HOOK UP FEES591-000-642.002
24.23 4,167.41 7.19 1,332.59 5,500.00 PENALTIES & INTEREST591-000-643.000
53.44 3,724.65 832.98 4,275.35 8,000.00 INTEREST591-000-665.000
0.00 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 MISC REVENUE591-000-684.000

41.05 575,025.48 115,431.65 400,474.52 975,500.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

41.05 575,025.48 115,431.65 400,474.52 975,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 536 - WATER/SEWER

22.02 35,090.35 1,983.15 9,909.65 45,000.00 DEPT HEAD WAGES591-536-702.001
46.51 86,646.41 15,159.60 75,353.59 162,000.00 FULL TIME WAGES591-536-702.704
50.14 997.27 0.00 1,002.73 2,000.00 OVER TIME WAGES591-536-702.705
65.39 346.06 265.29 653.94 1,000.00 PART TIME WAGES591-536-702.706
0.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 5,600.00 WATER LICENSE STIPEND591-536-702.710

100.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 NO FRINGE BENEFIT INCENTIVE591-536-702.717
35.41 11,786.89 1,248.55 6,463.11 18,250.00 EMPLOYER FICA591-536-710.000
43.43 12,445.39 1,904.86 9,554.61 22,000.00 EMPLOYERS SHARE OF PENSION591-536-711.000
43.87 16,276.45 2,544.71 12,723.55 29,000.00 HEALTH INSURANCE EXPENSE591-536-712.000
0.00 9,600.00 0.00 0.00 9,600.00 HEALTH INS EXPENSE-HEALTH SAVINGS591-536-712.001
15.56 1,688.80 62.24 311.20 2,000.00 ADMIN BENEFITS591-536-712.002
49.23 1,929.40 374.12 1,870.60 3,800.00 DENTAL INSURANCE EXPENSE591-536-713.000
38.10 386.90 47.62 238.10 625.00 OPTICAL PLAN EXPENSE591-536-714.000
31.50 2,055.00 189.00 945.00 3,000.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE591-536-720.000
1.66 909.60 3.08 15.40 925.00 LIFE INSURANCE EXPENSE591-536-721.000
72.14 690.61 0.00 1,788.39 2,479.00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION591-536-723.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES591-536-727.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 SUPPLIES591-536-728.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 MEALS & MILEAGE591-536-730.000
71.45 1,427.40 (200.00)3,572.60 5,000.00 CHEMICAL SUPPLIES591-536-732.000
89.28 214.37 774.66 1,785.63 2,000.00 POSTAGE591-536-740.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 MEDICAL & PHYSICALS591-536-741.000
0.00 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00 CLOTHING EXPENSE591-536-744.000
18.43 2,855.00 95.00 645.00 3,500.00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS591-536-750.000
17.19 5,796.37 369.76 1,203.63 7,000.00 GASOLINE PURCHASES591-536-751.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING591-536-752.000
95.87 693.70 0.00 16,106.30 16,800.00 FLEET INSURANCE591-536-760.000
0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 BANK FEES591-536-765.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 WELLHEAD PROTECTION591-536-770.000
8.80 2,736.00 44.00 264.00 3,000.00 WATER TESTING FEES591-536-771.000

246.87 (5,874.96)4,747.29 9,874.96 4,000.00 METER REPLACEMENT591-536-780.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 HYDRANT REPLACEMENT591-536-781.000
13.22 43,390.10 286.28 6,609.90 50,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES591-536-801.000
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES591-536-805.000
0.00 3,700.00 0.00 0.00 3,700.00 AUDIT SERVICES591-536-806.000
53.76 2,081.00 438.53 2,419.00 4,500.00 COMMUNICATION EXPENSE591-536-850.000
69.60 304.00 696.00 696.00 1,000.00 PRINTING & PUBLISHING591-536-900.000
43.61 28,197.43 4,002.70 21,802.57 50,000.00 GAS AND ELECTRIC591-536-920.000
44.15 16,755.70 13,244.30 13,244.30 30,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-BUILDING591-536-931.001
1.04 11,875.22 0.00 124.78 12,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-EQUIPMENT591-536-931.002
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-VEHICLE591-536-931.004



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 15/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Expenditures

38.25 3,087.27 882.73 1,912.73 5,000.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-WATER LINES591-536-931.009
100.00 0.00 0.00 86,715.00 86,715.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIRS-TANKS591-536-931.010
3.78 5,773.03 0.00 226.97 6,000.00 NEW WATER MAINS591-536-932.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 WELL REPAIRS591-536-933.000
0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 SCADA CONTROL SYSTEM591-536-946.000
16.59 1,251.15 0.00 248.85 1,500.00 MISC EXPENSE591-536-963.000
35.63 5,793.16 801.71 3,206.84 9,000.00 HARDWARE591-536-980.001
111.00 (11.00)23.00 111.00 100.00 SOFTWARE591-536-980.002
0.00 30,400.00 0.00 0.00 30,400.00 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BOND591-536-991.000
0.00 18,600.00 0.00 0.00 18,600.00 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BOND II591-536-991.001
0.00 71,000.00 0.00 0.00 71,000.00 USDA BOND 2016591-536-991.002
50.01 35,992.24 33,742.22 36,007.76 72,000.00 INTEREST EXPENSE591-536-994.000

40.04 495,036.31 83,730.40 330,607.69 825,644.00 Total Dept 536 - WATER/SEWER

40.04 495,036.31 83,730.40 330,607.69 825,644.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

46.62 79,989.17 31,701.25 69,866.83 149,856.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

40.04 495,036.31 83,730.40 330,607.69 825,644.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
41.05 575,025.48 115,431.65 400,474.52 975,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 16/16Page: 08/12/2024 01:43 PM
User: KATHY
DB: Lake Odessa Vil PERIOD ENDING 07/31/2024

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 07/31/2024

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
07/31/2024

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2024-25

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 999 - PAYROLL CLEARING
Revenues
Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

100.00 (34.88)9.02 34.88 0.00 INTEREST999-000-665.000

100.00 (34.88)9.02 34.88 0.00 Total Dept 000 - BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL

100.00 (34.88)9.02 34.88 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

100.00 (34.88)9.02 34.88 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (34.88)9.02 34.88 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 999 - PAYROLL CLEARING:

214.49 (356,611.87)314,464.38 668,100.87 311,489.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

36.13 1,518,903.27 190,360.93 859,337.73 2,378,241.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
56.79 1,162,291.40 504,825.31 1,527,438.60 2,689,730.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



GENERAL FUND CHECKING UNION BANK 441,099.69$          

GENERAL FUND SAVINGS PFCU 14.77$                    

LAKEWOOD COMMUNITY PROJECT SAVINGS UNION BANK 11,718.71$            

VEHICLE REPLACEMENT SAVINGS UNION BANK 69,576.25$            

GENERAL FUND INVESTMENT MI CLASS 236,780.15$          

GENERAL FUND CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT UNION BANK 500,000.00$          

MAJOR STREET FUND CHECKING UNION BANK 512,670.19$          

MAJOR STREET FUND INVESTMENT MI CLASS 119,300.81$          

LOCAL STREET FUND CHECKING UNION BANK 431,192.49$          

GENERAL HIGHWAY FUND CHECKING UNION BANK 296,163.56$          

GENERAL HIGHWAY BOND REDEMPTION CHECKING UNION BANK 3,822.80$              

GENERAL HIGHWAY FUND INVESTMENT MI CLASS 147,384.32$          

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CHECKING UNION BANK 69,833.20$            

ARTS COMMISSION CHECKING UNION BANK 35,583.97$            

WATER FUND CHECKING UNION BANK 565,911.83$          

WATER RR&I SAVINGS UNION BANK 296,879.45$          

WATER BOND REDEMPTION CHECKING UNION BANK 5,853.61$              

WATER BOND RESERVE SAVINGS MI 1 COMM CU 120,423.01$          

WATER FUND SAVINGS PFCU 286.15$                  

WATER FUND INVESTMENT MI CLASS 140,041.64$          

WATER FUND CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT UNION BANK 400,000.00$          

PAYROLL FUND CHECKING UNION BANK 34,325.10$            

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA

CHECKING / SAVINGS / INVESTMENT ACCOUNT BALANCES
AS OF JULY 31, 2024

RECONCILED



1 

 

Lake Odessa Village  
 

Zoning Administrator Report  
 

July 2024 
 

Permits: 
 
On 7-10-24 I approved a zoning permit to MCM MI Construction LLC to demo a mobile home at 
33 Mandy Lane in Lakewood Estates. 
 
On 7-10-24 I approved a zoning permit to MCM MI Construction LLC to demo a mobile home at 
84 Kicia Court in Lakewood Estates. 
 
On 7-26-24 I approved a zoning permit to Dixie Stadel-Manshum a back porch of 8’ by 8’ with 8’ 
by 27’ breezeway between the porch and garage plus an addition to the front porch of 8’ by 14’ to 
be located at 461 Fourth Ave. 
 
On 7-26-24 I approved a zoning permit to Zylstra Construction to demo an old garage and rebuild 
a new garage of 22’ by 34’ to be located at 1018 Lakeview Dr. 
 
 
Miscellaneous: 
 
Phone calls involved various appraisers checking on the zoning classification of assorted parcels.  
Other questions involved various questions regarding setbacks, fences, pools and permits. 
 
 
Master Plan 
The Planning Commission has sent out RFP’s for assistance to update the Master Plan and will 
be meeting with a couple of the top choices. 
 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
The members met on July 25 to hear a setback variance for an addition to 461 Fourth Ave but 
they withdrew their application due to planning a different construction plan/design which did not 
require a variance.  The other variance was a reconfirmation of a variance granted in 2000 to 
1036 Jordan Lake St for a law office in a rental dwelling.  The records have not been found and 
the owner plans to sell the property, so the approval paperwork is needed.  The ZBA re-confirmed 
the approval for the record.  They recommended that the fee be waived due to the records not 
being found. 
 
 
Violations 
 
On May 14 I sent a letter to the owner of 815 Fifth Ave regarding a shed structure that is falling 
apart with carpet pieces and flapping plastic hanging off it and it is within the setbacks of the 
home and side lot line.  I mentioned the large amount of junk and scrap in the yard (Art sent a 
letter on that).  I checked it on June 10 and the structure was still there and the scrap was in a 
large pile in the back yard.  I sent a new letter on June 10 noting that nothing had been done 
about the structure and gave them another 14 days to take care of it or a civil infraction ticket 
would be issued.  I then checked it on June 26 and it was the same.  I met with Art and he 
explained the owner person of record is deceased and a son lives there so I left my card in the 
door after knocking and sent a follow up letter to the son’s name.  On my July inspection, nothing 



2 

 

had changed so I wrote out a ticket to the son’s name for a violation of a shed structure in the 
setbacks.  Art issued a ticket for junk and scrap in the back yard. 
 
On May 14 I sent a letter to the owner of 1024 Fifth Ave regarding a partially filled pool with 
stagnant, algae thick and smelly water in it.  I sent a copy of the pool ordinance and asked that 
they drain the pool and if refill it they must use Village water and keep it chemically treated.  I 
checked it on June 10 and there was not any change in the pool water.  I sent another letter 
requesting compliance in 14 days.  On my June 26 inspection it was in the same condition.  I also 
met with Art on this and we went over there and knocked on the door.  We talked with the owner 
and he said he meant to call but has been draining the pool slowly with a pump as not to flood 
anyone’s yard.  I asked him to keep me informed and when it was completed.  I stopped by there 
again in July and talked to a visitor who answered the door about the consequences of a ticket.  
She said she would give the owner my card.  After no contact I sent a new letter on July 31 noting 
that a ticket would be issued in 7 days if noncompliant.  I urged them to rent a fast speed pump.  
The owner called me on August 2 and told me the pool had been all drained.  They plan to take 
the structure out. 
 
 



Presentations











































































































Unfinished Business



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, moved to 
adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-44 

APPROVING AMENDMENT TO  
RIGHT-OF-WAY CAFÉ ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, The Village of Lake Odessa and Fourth Avenue Inn and Bistro, LLC entered into an 
encroachment agreement on June 27, 2022 that permitted the construction of improvements in and 
occupancy of an area of the right-of-way of Second Street adjacent to the building located at 1002 
Fourth Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the encroachment agreement provides that the agreement “may not be amended, 
changed, modified, or altered without the written consent of the Village and Property Owner;” and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the encroachment agreement to correct an error in the 
description of the right-of-way subject to encroachment and to add language that would allow for 
assigning the agreement to a successor property owner or occupant; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
1. Recitals paragraph B shall be amended to read as follows: “The Village has control over

the right-of-way of the property commonly known as: the parking spots (eight (8’) feet
wide as measured from the existing curb) directly abutting the aforementioned property an
area on the north side of Second Street. approximately eighteen (18) feet wide and fifty-
six (56) feet long as measured from the south-east corner of the building located at 1002
Fourth Avenue (the “Right-of-Way”).”

2. Paragraph 19 shall be added to read as follows: “This agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and assigns. Fourth Avenue Inn and
Bistro, LLC shall not assign this agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without
the prior written consent of the Village of Lake Odessa.”

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution,
rescinded.

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Absent: 



Abstain: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED _______________. 

Dated: August 18, 2024 __________________________________ 
Kathy Forman, Village Clerk 



1

Gregg Guetschow

From: William Rogers <hairport07@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 2, 2024 4:05 PM
To: Manager
Subject: Fourth Avenue Inn & Bistro

Hi Greg, 
I Thank  the village council again,  for the  previous approval on the south deck and the use of the easement on the south 
side of the Bistro building. 
I have been doing hair full Ɵme, along with overnight accommodaƟons and the events at the Main Floor, to help 
conƟnue to help the village prosper and move forward. 
AŌer being open  for 8 months,  unfortunately I had to close it, I have realized that it needed to have more of  my 
undivided aƩenƟon, more than what I could  give.  
 I would like to be able to extend  the agreement between the Village  and Fourth Avenue Inn & Bistro to a perspecƟve 
buyer  I would like to sell the building and business, with my hope that  what I created and worked  so hard on, will be a 
desire for someone else to keep it, re open it and conƟnue on. 
UnƟl it sells,  I would like to use the space for events and gatherings like the Main Floor below the LoŌ. If being used for 
an event space, with the decks, could  I be able to conƟnue to use of  the south deck, for people to enjoy eaƟng out side  
for showers, open houses, or family gatherings, outside? Could they also be allowed to have alcohol  outside with int the 
clearly marked areas? Of course with “No Alcohol past this point“ signs. 
Could you please add this to the next meeƟng agenda. I do have perspecƟve buyer that is looking into it currently, and I 
would like to know what I would be acceptable.  
Thank you, Bill Rogers 
 
 
Sent from my iPad  





















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Business 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, moved to 
adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-47 
 

ACCEPTING FINANICAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

FEBRUARY 29, 2024 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa is required to have performed an independent audit of 
its financial statements; and 
 
WHEREAS, for the fiscal year that ended February 29, 2024 the audit was performed by the firm 
Walker, Fluke & Sheldon, PLC and a report prepared by the firm was presented to the Village 
Council as part of its agenda packet for a meeting held on August 19, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Council wishes to accept the financial statements as presented so as to permit 
its timely filing with the Michigan Department of Treasury together with related financial reports 
required by the Department;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village Council does hereby accept the 
financial statements prepared by Walker, Fluke & Sheldon, PLC and authorizes their filing 
together with related financial reports with the Michigan Department of Treasury.  
 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
Dated: August 19, 2024    __________________________________ 
       Kathy Forman, Village Clerk 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous Correspondence 






	8.19.24 Agenda
	Council Meeting Minutes
	7.15.2024 Village Council Minutes - Draft
	Expenditures
	Check Register 7.31.24
	Purchases Over
	Over 3000 Invoices 7.31.24
	Consent Agenda
	7.25.2024 DDA Minutes - Draft
	7-8-24 LOAAC Minutes
	7-25-24 LOAAC Minutes
	7.25.2024 ZBA Minutes - Draft
	Ben DeJong - DDA Resignation Letter
	Ray Dykhouse - ZBA Resignation Letter
	Departmental Reports
	Village Manager Report for 08 15 2024
	DPW August 2024
	Revenue and Expenditure Report 7.31.24
	Reconciled Account Balance Report - 7.31.24
	Sheet1

	LO ZA Report 2024-7
	Presentations
	Audit 2023-24
	Unfinished Business
	Resolution 2024-44 Approving Amendments to Right-of-Way Encroachment Agrement
	Rogers Request re Encroachment Agreement
	ROW Enchroachment Agreement 6.20.22
	New Business
	Resolution 2024-47 Accepting Financial Statements
	Miscellaneous Correspondence
	Terri Catt - Letter



